HOUSE OF LORDS
APPOINTMENTS COMMISSION
Room G/38, 1 Horse Guards Road, London SW1A 2HQ
General Enquiries: 07872 828699
Internet: http://lordsappointments.independent.gov.uk
E-mail: enquiry@lordsappointments.gov.uk

Ref: HOLAC FOI2022/14
14 July 2022

By email: <REDACTED>

Dear <REDACTED>,

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT REQUEST

| am replying to your Freedom of Information request, which the House of Lords
Appointments Commission (the Commission) received on 15 June 2022 and further
clarified on 28 June 2022. You asked:

Under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 | wish to see the following:

All communications (including emails, letters and records of meetings) and any
relevant materials (such as reports, memos, informational notes, briefings,
presentations etc..) between the Secretariat for the House of Lords
Appointments Commission and other officials in the Prime Minister's Office and
Cabinet Office relating to the awarding of a life peerage to Evgeny Lebedev in
2020. Please limit the date range to requested records dated 01 January 2020
through to 31 December 2020.

Where an email has been identified please disclose the full thread for context.
Please also search draft and (where possible) deleted email folders.
Please also include any attachments.

Where a meeting has been identified please include the minutes, agendas and
briefing materials - along with any other information handed out at the meetings.

We are writing to advise you that following a search of our paper and electronic
records, we have established that information you requested is held by the House of
Lords Appointments Commission.
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Some of the information in the scope of your request is being withheld under section
37(1)(b) of the Freedom of Information Act (information relating to the conferring by
the Crown of any honour or dignity). The information you request relates exclusively
to processes relating to the conferring by the Crown of a dignity. Section 37(1)(b) is,
however, a qualified exemption. | have therefore balanced the public interest in
maintaining the exemption against the public interest in disclosing the information.

In favour of disclosure, there is a strong public interest in knowing that the
appointments process is accountable and transparent, and in maintaining public
confidence in the system.

In favour of maintaining the exemption, there is a strong public interest in protecting
the confidentiality of the consideration of individual nominees. It is in the public
interest, and fundamental to the Commission’s ability to fulfil its core purpose of
nominating individuals to sit on the crossbenches of the House of Lords, that
individuals of high professional standing are willing to nominate themselves or be
nominated. It is unlikely that individuals would be willing to put their names forward if
they could not rely on the Commission’s confidentiality in handling their nomination or
if they otherwise felt that their personal details or personally-identifying aspects of the
Commission’s consideration of their case would be put in the public domain. We
believe the same consideration applies to political nominees who are vetted by the
Commission.

Taking all of the relevant factors into consideration, including the fact that the
Commission already places a great deal of information about its working practises in
the public domain to reassure the public that these are sufficiently rigorous, | consider
that the balance of the public interest lies in maintaining the section 37(1)(b) exemption
in respect of the names of nominees and other personally-identifying information about
them which has not already been put in the public domain by the Commission, the
Government or the individual.

Some of this information is also withheld under Section 40(2) of the Freedom of
Information Act. The names and other personally-identifying information about the
nominees themselves, members of both the HOLAC Secretariat, Cabinet Office and
No10 staff constitute personal data. Section 40(2) of the Act allows public authorities
to withhold personal data if disclosure would contravene any of the data protection
principles listed in the Data Protection Act 1998. It is for HOLAC to make a judgement
in relation to whether the data protection principles would be contravened and the
fairness of releasing data.

If it would not be fair to the data subject to disclose their personal data, an absolute
exemption from disclosure applies. Even if the disclosure of personal data might be
fair in some individual cases, further consideration is then given to Schedule 2 and 3
of the Data Protection Act, including whether processing might be necessary for the
purposes of legitimate interests. HOLAC undertakes to treat nominations in
confidence, thereby creating a reasonable expectation that their names or similarly
personally-identifying information, will not be released publicly. To release personally-
identifying information would be unfair and would therefore contravene the first data
protection principle.



Personally-identifying information about nominees and members of staff has therefore
been withheld under section 40(2).

Some of this information is also withheld under Section 41(1)(b) (information provided
in confidence) which allows public authorities to withhold information where the
disclosure of which would give rise to an actionable breach of confidence. At the start
of the vetting process, the House of Lords Appointments Commission informs
nominees that any information provided by them and any information the Commission
obtains in the course of its further enquiries of other bodies will be treated as
confidential. The information relating to nomination that is held by HOLAC therefore
has the necessary quality of confidence and there is no overriding public interest that
would allow it to be disclosed in breach of that confidence. Section 41 is an absolute
exemption, therefore there is no requirement to consider whether the public interest in
disclosing it outweighs the public interest in maintaining the exemption.

In addition, some of the information in scope is exempt under section 23(1) of the
Freedom of Information Act. Section 23(1) relates to information supplied by, or
relating to, bodies dealing with security matters. Section 23 is an absolute exemption
and therefore we are not obliged to consider the public interest in disclosure.

Some of the information in scope is also exempt under section Section 24(1) of the
Freedom of Information Act. Section 24(1) relates to safeguarding national security.
Section 24(1) is a qualified exemption and is subject to public interest testing which
means the information requested can only be withheld if the public interest in doing so
outweighs the public interest in disclosure. The outcome of the public interest test
concluded that there remains significant public interest in maintaining the effectiveness
and integrity of the vetting process and how information is obtained through specified
searches and sources.

From assessing the information in scope of this request, and with the above
exemptions in mind, we are able to release to you one document as an annex to this
letter.

e Annex A: Missing Citations.pdf

Under section 23(5) & 24(2) of the Act, HOLAC neither confirms nor denies whether it
holds any additional or other information that would be in scope of the type you have
requested on the grounds that it would, if held (which is neither confirmed nor denied),
be supplied by, or relates to, one of the security bodies listed under section 23(3) of
the Act. Section 23 is an absolute exemption and HOLAC is not required to consider
whether the public interest favours the confirmation or denial as to whether this
information is held.

Under section 24(2) of the Act, HOLAC neither confirms nor denies whether it holds
any additional or other information that would be in scope of the type you have
requested on the grounds that it would, if held (which is neither confirmed nor denied),
be required for the purposes of safeguarding national security. Section 24 is a qualified
exemption and we have considered whether the balance of the public interest favours
confirming or denying whether information of this type is held. There is a general public
interest in openness in government, which may increase public trust in and
engagement with the Government. However, we consider that there is a stronger



public interest in neither confirming nor denying whether information of this type is
held. We consider that the confirmation or denial as to whether information of this type
is held would have the effect of damaging national security. Such an outcome would
plainly not be in the public interest. We have therefore determined that the public
interest is in favour of neither confirming nor denying whether information of this type
is held.

If you are unhappy with this response to your request, you may write to the Secretary
to the Commission, Alison Bennett, to ask for an internal review by another person not
involved with this request. Please note that we will not normally accept an application
for internal review if it is received more than two months after the date that the reply
was issued.

If you are not content with the outcome of your internal review, you may apply directly
to the Information Commissioner for a decision.

Generally, the Commissioner cannot make a decision unless you have exhausted the
complaints procedure provided by HOLAC.

The Information Commissioner can be contacted at:
The Information Commissioner’s Office

Wycliffe House

Water Lane

Wilmslow

SK9 5AF

Yours sincerely,

Secretariat to the House of Lords Appointments Commission



